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ESSEX PLACE-NAMES PROJECT.

The Essex Place-names Project is a County-wide survey to record place- and field-names from historical documents such as Tithe maps and apportionments, estate maps, sale and auction catalogues, conveyances, terriers, deeds, rolls, inquisitions and surveys.

The second element of the Project is to investigate on-the-ground visible remains which correspond to the Place-names for actual or potential archaeological, agricultural and industrial 

sites, and to record natural (topographical) and man-made features which may relate to the Place-name. This involves field-survey in rural and outside investigation in built-up areas.

It is anticipated that the Project will lead to identification of archaeological sites and lost historic buildings;  it will enable analysis of indicators of early settlement, land  holding, agricultural and industrial practices of the County.  It will refine the more precise meaning of descriptive words and elements used by earlier settlers as they gave names appropriate to the topography of the landscape of their time.

For convenience the surveys are based on the parish, recognising that present civil parish boundaries are not necessarily identical to former ecclesiastical boundaries.  Local Recorders 

are supplied with templates of Record Forms to ensure consistency of recording across the County, and forward completed forms to a Central Coordinator for  transfer to a county 

computer database which is available at the Essex Record Office to researchers. 

This publication presents part of the information recorded from the Tithe or Estate Award and Map, (and from other documents for this parish.) The full record is contained on the master database in the Essex Record Office, Wharf Road, Chelmsford CM2 6YT and the website www.essex.ac.uk/history/esah/essexplacenames. Parish books are available from the ERO on disc or in hard copy or may be downloaded from the website. Please notify errors to the Project Coordinator at the Essex Record Office. 

      THE TITHE  MAP AND APPORTIONMENT.
Since medieval times a tenth of the produce of land and stock had been paid by landholders to the church.  At the Dissolution of the  Monasteries, the property of many religious houses, 

including the right to collect tithes, passed into lay hands.  The Tithe Commutation Act which received Royal assent on 13th August 1836 abolished a rent payable in kind and 

substituted rent-charges apportioned on each plot or parcel. The tithe-rent  payable was assessed on the average value of  wheat, barley and oats and was to fluctuate with price movements.

The commutation could be by voluntary agreement between the local owners and payers or, if agreement failed, could be compulsorily imposed by commissioners.  A Valuer was to be 

appointed to apportion the rent of each parcel of land and tenants could deduct that rent-charge from their rent paid to the landlord.  The task fell to the Tithe Commissioners to produce a map and an Apportionment (Award).  A large-scale survey was produced for over 70% of England and Wales in the following 9 years, and about another 8% up to 1855. Most of the 

parishes in Essex were surveyed.  The map scales vary. The Award records ownership, tenancy and land-use, field by field and parcel by parcel (often quoting the field name) with the 

ground area and rent-charge.  

Land that was tithe-free tends to be less accurately mapped and contains few if any of the details recorded for those parcels subject to tithe.  Rights of way and  roads also tend to be 

neglected. Boundaries of the tithe areas are shown as are some natural features such as streams, ponds, gardens, greens and commons. Buildings are often shown coloured red if dwellings or grey if  not.  Because the Award may have been agreed only some time after the map was finished, discrepancies occur between the two.  Enclosure Awards, when extant, usually date to the 18th and early 19th centuries.                                                                                                                                                                                            J.Kemble.
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Noak Hill parish (in the Royal Liberty of Havering-atte-Bower).
There is no Tithe Award for Noak Hill. The Map of The Estate called Dagnams in the Hamlet of Romford in the Parish of Hornchurch (Essex Record Office D/DNe P3), dated 1748, surveyed by James Crow forms the basis for the table of field-names below. The London road (Hare Street) forms the southern boundary with the Parish of Hornchurch. This road was crossed by Paine’s Bridge and Puttwell Bridge, at the southwest and southeast corners of Noak Hill (VCH, 1978).  Field- and place-names from other documents are shown against the Map names.
Associated with Richard ate Noke (t. Edward I, 1272-1307), Noak Hill is documented in 1490. This translates from Middle English atten ac, ‘at the oak-tree’. The eastern boundary with South Weald is Weald Brook which becomes Ingrebourne River south of the London road. The confirmation charter of Earl Harold’s foundation of Waltham Holy Cross, dated 1062, gives the bounds of South Weald starting at dellen, which is Weald Brook where it is crossed by the London road at Putwell Bridge, now at the A12/M25 junction (Kemble, 2007). To the manor house of Dagnams Samuel Pepys came in 1665 to help to arrange the marriage of Philip Carteret (later Sir Philip who died on the battlefield) and Jemima, daughter of the earl of Sandwich. The church dedicated to St. Thomas was built in 1841-42; it has a southwest turret (Pevsner, 1954; Mee, 1972).  At Weald View, Paternoster Row, excavations have revealed quantities of Mill Green (Fryerning) potsherds suggesting a nearby medieval kiln (Mackley, 1999).
The Royal Liberty of Havering-atte-Bower, which included Romford and Hornchurch, was created out of Becontree Hundred by charter of Edward IV in 1465 (Reaney, 1935; Radford, 2012). Watts (2004) translates this from the Old English folk-name Hæferingas + Middle English bour, ‘Hæfer’s people at-the-chamber’ referring to the royal palace here since before the Norman conquest until it fell in to decay c.1620. The Liberty was abolished in 1892. Noak Hill was added to Havering-att-Bower and Romford to form an Urban District in 1934 (Kemble, 2007; Radford, 2010). 
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The Place-names of Noak Hill (Map of Dagnams estate, 1748 (ERO: D/DNe P3)).
	Place-name
	Alias
	Grid Ref
	x
	y
	Type
	Other information

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Further Home field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Nearer Home field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Mill Hill
	
	TQ
	543
	937
	field
	

	Hilly Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Two Acre Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Stack Mead
	
	TQ
	545
	937
	field
	

	Pound Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Nearer Hilly
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Further Hilly
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Dagnams Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Three Acre Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Peases Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Hattery
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Middle Hattery
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Hatters Wood
	Hatterislade, 1353,Ct
	TQ
	547
	927
	wood
	Ralph le Hatter, 1293,HPD

	Merry field
	
	TQ
	549
	939
	field
	

	Woolmers
	
	TQ
	538
	938
	field
	

	Brick Clamps
	
	TQ
	538
	937
	field
	

	Kitchen Garden
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Six Acre Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Hosiers Wood
	
	TQ
	554
	934
	wood
	

	Little Hosier
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Great Hosier
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Further Hosier
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Nearer Hosier
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Long Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Long Denn
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Church Mead Wood
	
	TQ
	
	
	wood
	

	Church Mead  
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Church Field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Hungerdown Wood
	
	TQ
	
	
	wood
	

	Elm Wood
	
	TQ
	
	
	wood
	

	Kitchen field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	The Great Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Park Spring
	
	TQ
	
	
	wood
	

	Cowhouse field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Cart horse field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Barn field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Riding Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Home Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Kitchen Mead
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	The Hoppet
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Cockerells Wood
	terra Cokerel(l), 1378,HPD, 1420,Pat
	TQ
	
	
	wood
	Roger Cokerel, 1233,HPD

	The Hilly field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Great Gravell pitt field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Little Gravell pitt field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Gravell pitt Wood
	
	TQ
	
	
	wood
	

	Great Pond field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Little Pond field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Pond Field Wood
	
	TQ
	552
	922
	wood
	

	Duck Wood
	
	TQ
	555
	924
	wood
	

	Tanners Land Wood
	
	TQ
	562
	932
	wood
	

	Tanners Land  
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Thistley field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	The Mead field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Shakers Hall field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Shakers Wood
	
	TQ
	
	
	wood
	

	Mudd field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Walk field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Three Corner field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Middle Road field
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Great Bandalls
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Little Bandalls
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Road Field Ten Acres
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Long Eich
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Great Delhams Wood
	
	TQ
	552
	920
	wood
	

	Great Delhams
	cp. Dellen, 1062,Charter
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Little Delhams  
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Little Delhams Wood
	
	TQ
	
	
	wood
	

	Rich Lands
	
	TQ
	
	
	field
	

	Puttells Mead
	[by Del(le)bregg(e), 1276,For, 1299,Waltham A]
	TQ
	564
	925
	field
	John Putehale of Upminster, 1377, FeetFine

	Puttells Field
	[at Puttells Bridge, 1777,C]
	TQ
	564
	923
	field
	Leticia Potehale, 1272, Ass; Simon Potal(e), 1400, 1403,Ct


Ordnance Survey 6” Map, c.1875

	Carter's Brook
	
	TQ
	539
	932
	
	

	Cockerells (site of)
	Cokerall's tenement, 1385,HPD
	TQ
	549
	925
	
	Roger Cokerel, 1233,HPD

	Dagenhams (remains of)
	cp. Dakenham (tenement), 1378,1385,HPD
	TQ
	550
	935
	
	

	Dagnam Park
	cp. Dagenham(me)s, 1384,HarlR
	TQ
	550
	930
	
	William de Dageham at Delle, 1334,Ipm

	Dagnampark Farm
	
	TQ
	549
	924
	
	

	Joy's Farm
	cp. Joyes Mead(e alias Hoo Croft), 1482,Shawcross
	TQ
	533
	938
	
	John Joye, 1497, HPD

	Manor Farm
	Paynes, 1542,MnAt
	TQ
	540
	935
	
	Margaret Paynes, 1320,HPD

	Noak Hill
	Noak Hill, 1490,Ct; Nookhill, 1523,SR
	TQ
	540
	940
	
	Richard are Noke, tEdw I, HPD

	Noakhill Common
	
	TQ
	535
	935
	
	

	Paine's Brook; Paine’s Bridge
	cp. Paynes Brydge, 1568,Sessions
	TQ
	551
	913
	
	Margaret Paynes, 1320,HPD

	Paternoster Row
	
	TQ
	533
	941
	bldgs
	

	Priory
	
	TQ
	545
	935
	
	

	St Thomas's Church
	
	TQ
	541
	940
	
	

	The Old Angel
	
	TQ
	550
	941
	
	

	The Old Crown
	
	TQ
	535
	945
	
	

	Wabbing's Plantation
	
	TQ
	548
	947
	wood
	

	Weald Brook
	
	TQ
	553
	937
	
	

	Wrightsbridge Farm
	tenement called John Wright, 1378,HPD
	TQ
	551
	943
	
	John Wright son of John de brydge, 1553,SWeald PR


For abbreviations see Reaney, P., 1935. The Place-names of Essex, Cambridge; and Kemble, J., 2007. Essex-names, Places, Streets & People, Historical Publications, p.153.

Noak Hill.
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                                                                                                                                                                                        6 inches = 1 mile
                                                                                                                                                                                                                          O.S.,  c. 1875
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Noak Hill parish in the County of Essex.
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